
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643694 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Democratic Services/ 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mawrth, 19 Medi 2023 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 3 Hybrid yn Siambr y Cyngor - Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd 
yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, CF31 4WB/ o bell trwy Dimau Microsoft ar Dydd Llun, 25 Medi 2023 
am 16:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    

 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 8 

 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 20 02 23 
 

4.  Strategaeth y Rhaglen Cymorth Tai (Strategaeth Digartrefedd) 2022-2026   9 - 48 

 Gwahoddwyr: 
 
Cynghorydd Rhys Goode – Aelod Cabinet dros Dai, Cynllunio ac Adfywio 
 
Carys Lord - Pennaeth Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid 
Martin Morgans - Pennaeth Gwasanaeth - Perfformiad a Gwasanaethau Partneriaeth  
Ryan Jones – Rheolwr Comisiynu Tai Strategol 
 
Debbie Thomas – Pennaeth Polisi a Chyfathreby, Argyfwng Cymru 
 

5.  Casgliad / Argymhellion  
 

 

6.  Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith  
 

49 - 64 

7.  Materion Brys    

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

 
Nodyn:  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod Hybrid a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy Siambr y 
Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft. 
Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes gennych unrhyw 
gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643148 / 
643694 / 643513 / .643696 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
S J Bletsoe 
N Clarke 
C Davies 
P Davies 

M J Evans 
P W Jenkins 
MJ Kearn 
W J Kendall 

J E Pratt 
G Walter 
I Williams 
MJ Williams 



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 20 CHWEFROR 2023 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 A GYNHALIWYD YN HYBRID 
YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR 
OGWR, CF31 4WB / O BELL TRWY DIMAU MICROSOFT - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD 
YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR, CF31 4WB DYDD LLUN, 20 CHWEFROR 2023, AM 
16:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd P Davies – Cadeirydd  

 
S J Bletsoe N Clarke C Davies M J Evans 
P W Jenkins MJ Kearn W J Kendall J E Pratt 
G Walter I Williams MJ Williams  

 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
 Ceri Evans – Cyfarwyddwr Datblygu Busnes yn Awen 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Lucy Beard Swyddog Craffu 
Rachel Keepins Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Meryl Lawrence Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Craffu 
Jacob Lawrence Principal Regeneration Officer 
Jessica Mclellan Swyddog Craffu 
Janine Nightingale Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau 
Jonathan Parsons Rheolwr Grŵp Datblygu 

 
31. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 

 
Fe wnaeth y Cynghorwyr Jonathan Pratt a Neelo Farr ddatgan buddiant personol gan eu 
bod yn aelodau etholedig o Gyngor Tref  Porthcawl. 
 

32. ADFYWIO PORTHCAWL 
 
Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol dros Gymunedau yr adroddiad, a'i ddiben oedd 
rhoi trosolwg ar Raglen Adfywio Porthcawl.  
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol dros Gymunedau a bu’r Aelodau’n 
trafod y canlynol:  
 

 Cafwyd cadarnhad gan Aelodau lleol Porthcawl eu bod wedi cael gwybod yn 
rheolaidd a’u bod yn ymwybodol o bob cam o ddatblygiad adfywio Porthcawl. 

 Nodwyd manylion a lleoliad ardal Bae Sandy i ddefnydd addysgol ar y 
cynllun, boed hynny ar gyfer ysgol newydd neu estyniad i'r ysgol bresennol.  

 Mewn achosion eithafol yn unig, pan na ellid dod o hyd i berchennog y tir neu 
lle roedd rhyw anghysondeb, y cyhoeddid gorchmynion prynu gorfodol 
(GPG). Roedd perchnogion Parc yr Anghenfilod wedi gofyn am iddo fynd i 
GPG a chael prisiad annibynnol o'r tir. Byddai gwerth y tir hwnnw’n cael ei 
dalu i’r perchnogion hynny ac roedd wedi ei gynnwys yng nghyllideb y rhaglen 
adfywio.  

 Y weledigaeth ar gyfer Porthcawl fel tref wyliau a thref arfordirol; gyda chyfle 
ar gyfer cyflogaeth a thai fforddiadwy. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 20 CHWEFROR 2023 

 

 Roedd y cysyniad oedd wedi cael ei ymgorffori yn y safleoedd strategol ac yn 
y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (CDLl) newydd ynghylch mynediad at hanfodion o 
fewn taith gerdded gyflym neu feicio 20 munud o'r cartref i gael ei ystyried a'i 
ymgorffori mewn datblygiadau.  

 Pa fath o gyfleuster hamdden fyddai'n cael ei roi yn ei le; mae dewisiadau'n 
cael eu hystyried gan gynnwys o bosibl ffair haf dymhorol a byd o 
ryfeddodau’r gaeaf ac o fewn cytundeb y tirfeddiannwr byddai Bae Sandy a 
Thraeth Coney ar gyfer datblygiad defnydd cymysg. Yr angen am Dai Lleol 
ym Mhorthcawl, y strategaeth dai gynhwysfawr a baratowyd o ganlyniad i’r 
CDLl, yr angen a nodwyd am 1100 o gartrefi newydd ym Mhorthcawl o fewn y 
15 mlynedd nesaf i ddarparu ar gyfer twf yn yr ardal, gan gynnwys 
cymysgedd o gartrefi: cartrefi ar rent, cartrefi fforddiadwy, tai cymdeithasol a 
gofal ychwanegol.  

 Arolygon Parcio i bennu'r angen am le i barcio ym Mhorthcawl a'r astudiaeth 
ddichonoldeb sy'n cael ei chynnal i gael lleoedd parcio newydd o ganlyniad i 
Ddatblygiad Salt Lake a'r dewisiadau parcio ceir.  
 

 Ffocws Buddsoddi Cyrchfan Porthcawl a Cosy Corner oedd y cynllun olaf i 
gael ei ariannu gan Lywodraeth Cymru ac arian Croeso Cymru. 

 Y broses a'r meini prawf cymhwyso ar gyfer cais llwyddiannus y siop 
fanwerthu bwyd, gyda chynllun datblygu manwl yn cael ei lunio a'i gytuno gan 
y Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygu ar gyfer gwerthu'r safle. Cynigwyd y cyfle i 
fanwerthwyr posibl gwrdd â Swyddogion Cynllunio a thrafod eu syniadau ar 
gyfer dyluniad y safle cyn i dendr y safle ddechrau. O'r pum tendr a 
dderbyniwyd, nid oedd tri yn cyd-fynd â'r briff dylunio a chawsant eu diystyru, 
ac un o’r rhain oedd y cynigydd uchaf. Yr ail rownd oedd yr ystyriaeth orau, a 
derbyniwyd y cais gan Aldi oherwydd iddo basio'r bar dylunio a'r ystyriaeth 
orau.  

 Sut y byddai Terminws Metrolink yn rhedeg yn effeithiol a sut y byddai'n cael 
ei gynnal, amseroedd gweithredu bysiau, cost refeniw rhedeg y cyfleuster, a 
ellid cynhyrchu unrhyw incwm refeniw, yn ogystal â’r refeniw sy'n dod i mewn 
o unedau manwerthu Cosy Corner.  

 Byddai'r cynnig i ddarparu cyswllt uniongyrchol rhwng Gorsaf y Pîl a 
Phorthcawl fel yr orsaf agosaf a'r cynnig i adleoli gorsaf y Pîl yn darparu 
cyfleusterau parcio a theithio ychwanegol. 

 A oedd dymuniadau pellach ar gyfer Terminws Bysiau Metrolink ac a fyddai’r 
awdurdod yn cyfrannu lle bo modd at astudiaethau gan Sefydliad 
Cenedlaethol Trafnidiaeth Cymru ynghylch: Rheilffordd ysgafn; Cynigion 
posibl i symud yr orsaf reilffordd yn y Pîl i'w lleoliad blaenorol, ac; yn amodol 
ar adleoli Gorsaf y Pîl, y posibilrwydd o osod cyswllt o'r safle hwnnw'n 
uniongyrchol i Borthcawl gyda’r dewis o dram rheilffordd.  

 Gwasanaethau a llwybrau Gweithredwyr Bysiau a thrafodaethau gyda'r 
Awdurdod.  

 Er y bu llai o fysiau/coetsys yn teithio i Borthcawl ar gyfer teithiau dydd ac, a 
ellid edrych i mewn i'r angen posibl am leoedd parcio i fysiau yn y dyfodol. 

 A ellid dysgu gwersi o ailddatblygu Neuadd Tref Maesteg ar gyfer prosiect 
Pafiliwn Porthcawl o ystyried peth tebygrwydd a statws rhestredig yr 
adeiladau. Lle’r Pafiliwn yn y dref fel lleoliad ar gyfer: cynadledda, sioeau, ac 
adloniant, a gobeithion am lyfrgell newydd.  

Page 4



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 20 CHWEFROR 2023 

 

 Rheolau Caffael Corfforaethol ar gyfer y broses dendro, gwaith yn cael ei 
dendro oddi ar fframweithiau gyda chyfraddau y cytunwyd arnynt yn cael eu 
gweinyddu ar gyfer y rhanbarth drwy Gyngor Dinas Caerdydd, a diwydrwydd 
ariannol dyladwy, profiad blaenorol a gwybodaeth gan y contractwyr yn cael 
ei harchwilio i sicrhau bod ganddynt hylifedd.  

 Eglurder y câi’r arian a gynhyrchir o werthu’r tir ei roi yn y rhaglen gyfalaf i’w 
ddefnyddio ar gyfer Rhaglen Adfywio Porthcawl, ac fel rhaglen adfywio 
gwerth miliynau o bunnoedd cymerai 5-8 mlynedd i’w chyflawni, ac felly 
byddai’r swm yn y Rhaglen Gyfalaf yn amrywio.   

 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw gwestiynau pellach i'r gwahoddedigion,  
diolchodd i'r gwahoddedigion am ddod a dywedodd eu bod yn rhydd i adael y 
cyfarfod.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Yn dilyn ystyriaeth fanwl a thrafodaethau gyda’r 
                                Swyddogion ac Aelodau’r Cabinet, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor  
                                yr argymhellion canlynol:  
  
1. Bod y Pwyllgor yn derbyn y cynnig gan y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - 

Cymunedau i fynd ar ymweliad â’r safle/cerdded o amgylch ardal Adfywio 
Porthcawl. 
 

2. Wrth geisio cael gwared ar safleoedd, bod yr awdurdod yn defnyddio’r un 
ymarferiad caffael ag a ddefnyddiwyd i werthu safle Salt Lake a ddisgrifiwyd 
i’r Pwyllgor fel dull dau gam: 
1) Dylunio; ac 
2) Ystyriaeth orau. 

 
3. O ystyried y cynnydd a ragwelir mewn twristiaeth i Borthcawl oherwydd yr 

adfywio a ac mai cynlluniau i ddisodli'r lleoedd parcio presennol yn unig oedd 
yna ac nid i sicrhau bod lleoedd parcio ychwanegol ar gael, y dylid ystyried y 
posibilrwydd o gynnydd yn nifer y teithiau diwrnod ar fws i Borthcawl a’r 
angen posibl am ychwanegu mannau parcio bysus yn y dref neu'r ardaloedd 
cyfagos a bod hyn yn cael ei gynnwys yn y strategaeth. 
 

4. Mynegwyd pryderon ynghylch y gwasanaethau trên cyfyngedig ac anfynych 
iawn yng ngorsaf drenau’r Pîl a thynnodd y Pwyllgor sylw at y ffaith fod gan 
orsaf drenau Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr nid yn unig wasanaethau amlach ond hefyd 
mai dyma’r fan i newid ar gyfer llawer o wasanaethau rheilffordd y cymoedd. 
Nododd y Pwyllgor hefyd nad oedd y cyfleuster parcio a theithio arfaethedig 
yng ngorsaf drenau’r Pîl yn mynd rhagddo bellach ac na fyddai’r orsaf yn cael 
ei huwchraddio yn y dyfodol agos ac felly, argymhellodd y byddai’n fwy 
buddiol i’r Metrolink gysylltu â gorsaf drenau Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn hytrach 
na’r Pîl hyd nes y caiff Gorsaf y Pîl ei huwchraddio.                            

  
A gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am y canlynol:  
 
5. Sleidiau’r cyflwyniad PowerPoint a gyflwynwyd yn y cyfarfod.  

 

Page 5



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 20 CHWEFROR 2023 

 

6. Gofyn i berchnogion ffair Traeth Coney Beach a fyddent yn fodlon darparu 
ffigurau gwariant defnyddwyr, nifer yr ymwelwyr a nifer y bobl yn ymweld â'r 
ffair yn dymhorol ar gyfartaledd. 

 
7. Faint o refeniw fyddai’n cael ei wario yn y dref o ganlyniad i’r ffair a faint 

fyddai’n cael ei golli, a’r effaith economaidd a gâi colli’r ffair ar y dref.  
 

8. Oherwydd pryderon ynghylch diffyg amddiffynfeydd morol yn Newton, ymateb 
ysgrifenedig mewn perthynas â Chynllun Rheoli Traethlin Newton yn cynnwys 
gwybodaeth a oedd Swyddogion yn chwilio am arian grant a beth yw'r 
blaengynllun. 

 
9. Ymateb ysgrifenedig ynghylch y cynlluniau oedd yn rhan o Ffocws Buddsoddi 

mewn Adfywio Porthcawl yn wreiddiol, beth yw eu statws presennol ac, os 
oes elfennau sydd heb gael eu hadeiladu eto, beth yw’r cynlluniau ar gyfer y 
rhain. 
 

10. Ymateb ysgrifenedig i grynhoi ffynhonnell pob un o’r ffrydiau cyllido unigol 
sy’n ariannu’r gwahanol agweddau ar Adfywio Porthcawl i gynnwys manylion 
pa gyllid a ddaw o’r sector preifat a pha gyllid a ddaw o fannau eraill (gan 
gynnwys unrhyw grantiau). 
 

11. Briff cyfrinachol er mwyn deall hanes Cosy Corner yn well a pham y cafodd 

Swyddogion eu hatal rhag ymateb i rai cwestiynau yn y cyfarfod. 

33. DIWEDDARIAD RHAGLEN GWAITH 
 

Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Craffu y Flaenraglen Waith (FWP) yn Atodiad A i'r 
Pwyllgor ei thrafod a'i hystyried, gan ofyn am unrhyw wybodaeth benodol a 
nodwyd gan y Pwyllgor i'w chynnwys yn yr eitemau ar gyfer y ddau gyfarfod 
nesaf, gan gynnwys y bobl y dymunent eu gwahodd i fod yn bresennol. 
Gofynnodd i’r Pwyllgor nodi unrhyw eitemau pellach i'w hystyried ar y 
Flaenraglen Waith gan gofio’r meini prawf dethol ym mharagraff 4.3 a gofynnodd 
i'r Pwyllgor nodi’r Daflen Weithredu Monitro Argymhellion i olrhain ymatebion i 
argymhellion y Pwyllgor a wnaed mewn cyfarfod blaenorol yn Atodiad B. 
Gofynnodd hefyd i’r Pwyllgor nodi y ceid adroddiad am y Flaenraglen Waith ar 
gyfer y Pwyllgor a’r Daflen Weithredu Monitro Argymhellion yng nghyfarfod nesaf 
y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol. 
 
Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am i'r eitemau canlynol gael eu hystyried i'w hychwanegu 
at y Flaenraglen Flynyddol yn y Cyfarfod Cynllunio Craffu nesaf ar gyfer SOSC 3: 
 

1. Diogelwch cerddwyr mewn pentrefi hanesyddol – teithio llesol a llwybrau 
diogel.  

 
2. Edrych ar gam nesaf y gronfa Lefelu a chyflwyno cynigion.   

 
3. Gwybodaeth a diweddariad ar ble yr oedd y Gyfarwyddiaeth arni o ran 

asedau a Throsglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol.  
 

Page 6



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 20 CHWEFROR 2023 

 

4. Pwyntiau gwefru trydan, lle mae hyn ar hyn o bryd o fewn y tri cham a 
beth fydd yn digwydd ar ôl cwblhau cam tri. Adroddiad gwybodaeth posibl 
a allai ddod o dan Strategaeth Sero Net.  
 

5. Gan mai Chwe mis oedd i fynd cyn cyflwyno'r parthau cyflymder 20 milltir 
yr awr, byddai'r Pwyllgor yn gwerthfawrogi diweddariad cyffredinol ar y 
cynnydd, pa ffyrdd a nodwyd a’r amserlenni ar gyfer gosod arwyddion. 
 

6. Strategaeth / Polisi'r Sir ar gyfer faniau gwersylla symudol, carafanau a 
safleoedd i annog y byd twristiaeth ymhellach ac adeiladu ar refeniw.  

   
Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am sesiynau briffio i aelodau ar gyfer SOSC 3 ar: 

1. Cyflenwi Seilwaith; 
2. Darpariaeth Gwastraff. 

 
Ni nodwyd eitemau pellach i'w hystyried ar y Flaenraglen Waith o ystyried y 
meini prawf dethol ym mharagraff 4.3, a gellid ailystyried hyn yn y cyfarfod nesaf.  
 
Nid oedd unrhyw geisiadau i gynnwys gwybodaeth benodol yn yr eitem ar gyfer y 
cyfarfod nesaf.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Pwyllgor wedi cymeradwyo’r Flaenraglen Waith  
                                yn Atodiad A, yn amodol ar ymgorffori'r ceisiadau  
                                uchod, nodwyd y Daflen Weithredu Monitro  
                                Argymhellion yn Atodiad B a nodwyd y ceid adroddiad  
                                am y Flaenraglen Waith, y Daflen Weithredu Monitro  
                                Argymhellion ac unrhyw ddiweddariadau gan y  
                                Pwyllgor yng nghyfarfod nesaf COSC.     
 

34. MATERION BRYS 
 
Dim. 
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 18:56 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
25 SEPTEMBER 2023 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
HOUSING SUPPORT PROGRAMME STRATEGY  

(HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY) 2022 - 2026 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

  
CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND 

CHANGE  

Responsible 
Officer:  

MARTIN MORGANS 
HEAD OF PARTNERSHIP SERVICES  

 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

There is no effect upon the policy framework and procedure 
rules.  

Executive 
Summary:  
 

- There is a requirement under Part 2 of the Housing 

(Wales) Act 2014 to carry out a Homelessness Review 

and then to develop a Homelessness Strategy.  

 

- The format of what is now referred to as a Housing 

Support Programme Strategy is set by Welsh 

Government.  

 

- BCBC has undertaken a review, the findings of which 

include increasing demands on housing services 

across the board and a lack of availability of suitable 

accommodation.  

 

- A draft Strategy has been developed and is currently 

subject to public consultation. The draft Strategy can 

be seen at Appendix 1 and an associated Action Plan 

at Appendix 2.  

 

- Members of Subject Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 3 are invited to consider and provide 

comment on the contents of the draft Strategy and 

Action Plan.  

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 

on the draft Housing Support Programme (HSP) Strategy (Homelessness Strategy) 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

2022-2026 attached as Appendix 1 and associated Action Plan attached at 

Appendix 2. 

2. Background  
 
2.1 Part 2 of The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 places a duty on the Authority to carry out 

a Homelessness Review for its area and then formulate and adopt a Homelessness 
Strategy, based on the results of that review. Any review and strategy must look at 
the achievement of the following objectives: 
 

• The prevention of homelessness 

• That suitable accommodation is and will be available for people who are or may 

become homeless 

• That satisfactory support is available for people who are or may become 

homeless  

 

2.2 The format of the HSP Strategy is prescribed by Welsh Government and follows the 

guidance and template documents provided to local authorities. 

 

2.3 An Independent Consultant was commissioned to undertake a review on behalf of 

the Authority. This offered an impartial and fresh perspective for the Strategy. This 

review has been one of co–production of the Strategy and all key stakeholder 

groups were surveyed or interviewed, including people that use, or have used 

homelessness services. Key statistics were analysed along with a review of relevant 

local and national policies to identify needs.  

2.4  The Homelessness Review has provided the necessary information to draft the 
Strategy as per Welsh Government guidance. The key messages from the review 
are: 
 

• The period of 2020/2021 saw the highest level of presentations ever recorded by 
Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC), 1,612 presentations, which was likely 
influenced by the Covid-19 pandemic and the ‘All In’ approach.   

 

• In 2021/2022 there were 1,290 applications.  This is a decrease in applications 
from the peak in 2020/2021 however, this number is still a marked increase on 
presentations compared to the figures at the time of BCBC’s 2018 Homelessness 
Review and Strategy.  During 2017/2018, 1,032 homelessness presentations 
were made, which is fewer than 2021/2022. 

 

• The demand for social housing has increased. The number of new applications 

added to the Common Housing Register has increased significantly from 147 in 

2019/2020, to 428 in 2020/2021 - an increase of 191%.  2021/2022 saw an 

increase of 104%, with 873 applications and, as at the 20th of February 2023, an 

increase of 14%, with 993 applications. 

 

• The total number of applicants on the Common Housing Register at the end of 

each year has increased substantially.  During 2019/2020 there were 816 

applicants, in 2020/2021 that had increased by 81% to 1,477.  During 2021/2022 

Page 10



 

the figure had increased by a further 45% to 2,143. As at 4th July 2023, there are 

2629 applicants on the register.  

 

• The use of temporary accommodation has grown exponentially from pre-Covid 

levels with figures strongly impacted by the ‘All In’ approach during and post-

Covid. The number of households in temporary accommodation at the end of 

each financial year is as follows:  

 

o 2018/2019 - 71 households   

o 2019/2020 – 83 households 

o 2020/2021- 167 households 

o 2021/2022 - 199 households 

o 2022/2023 – 253 households   

• Single person households consistently make up a significant proportion of 
applications. In 2020/21 it was 73% of all applications, in 2021/22 single person 
applications accounted for 68% of all applications.   

 

• The majority of homelessness applications were from the 25 year+ category at 
76% in 2020/21 and 75% in 2021/22. 

 

• Applications from 18 – 24 year olds accounted for 22% in both 2020/21 and 
2021/22. 

 
• Applications from 16 – 17 year olds reduced from 6% in 2018/19 to 1% in 2020/21 

to 3% in 2021/22. 
 

• There is a lack of private rented accommodation available within the Local 
Housing Allowance rate in Bridgend. An on-line search on Zoopla as at the 4th 
July 2023 showed the total number of properties to rent was 44.  Of those, the 
search identified no available properties within the Local Housing Allowance rate 
for any property size, highlighting the significant lack of private properties 
available to rent at an affordable rate for those reliant on the Local Housing 
Allowance.  

 
3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 On 18th July 2023 Cabinet approved the commencement of a formal public 

consultation on the draft Strategy and Action Plan as set out at Appendix 1 and 
Appendix 2.  

 
3.2 The consultation is currently live and due to end on 12th October 2023. At the end of 

the consultation period responses will be taken into account and necessary 
amendments made, with a final Strategy being presented to a future meeting of 
Cabinet for approval. 

 
3.3 The questions asked as part of the public consultation are set out below: 
 

- Do you agree with the Strategy’s aim: 
 

Page 11



 

“To work in partnership with stakeholders to prevent homelessness, ensuring that 

where prevention is not possible, homelessness is rare, brief and unrepeated. 

Those who access services will be given the support required to live as 

independently as possible.” 
 

- Does the Housing Support Programme Strategy clearly explain what challenges the 
Council faces in delivering homelessness and housing support services? 
 

- Do you agree with the Council’s Strategic Priorities and Objectives as set out in the 
Straegy? 
 

- Is there anything missing from the Housing Support Programme Strategy that you 
would like to see included? 
 

- The Action Plan details steps that will be taken to deliver the strategy over a 4 year 
period.  Do you agree with the actions identified? 
 

- Is there anything missing from the Action Plan and what would you like to see 
included? 

 

- Please use the space to provide any further comments on this draft Housing Support 
Programme Strategy and the Action Plan 

 
 
3.4 Members of Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 are invited to consider and 

provide comment on the contents of the documents at Appendix 1 and Appendix 2, 
in the context of the questions set out at paragraph 3.3 above.   

 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there 

would be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected 
characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh Language. 
It is therefore not necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.  

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 Tackling homelessness is a Welsh Government priority. The report contributes to 

the following goals within the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
  

• A prosperous Wales – Reducing homelessness supports a prosperous Wales by 
reducing cost to the public purse.  

• A resilient Wales – Our Housing Support Programme Strategy aims to prevent 
and relieve homelessness, increasing the resilience of both indivudlas supported 
and the general structures in place to support the goal of achieving a position 
where homelessness in Wales is rare, brief and non recurrent.   

• A Wales of cohesive communities – Preventing individuals from becoming 
homeless will support cohesive communities.  

• A globally responsive Wales – Homelessness is an issue across the globe. 
These strategic documents set out the approach Brdgend will take to support 
Wales in in efforts around this agenda.  

Page 12



 

 

5.2 It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon the 

 achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.   

6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 The prevention and relief of homelessness supports the agenda around climate 

change. In considering BCBC’s housing need, supply and demand and the intention 
of delivering affordable housing schemes to meet these needs, schemes will be 
developed in line with Welsh Government planning and standards requirements, 
which support moves to tackle climate change.   
 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 Homelessness and housing support services play a key role in supporting BCBC’s 

safeguarding agenda, both from an individual perspective with services often 
supporting vulnerable individuals, known to safeguarding agencies. 

 
7.2 The priorities set out in the Housing Support Programme Strategy reference a need 

to improve collaboration with key stakeholders, with specific objectives around 
improving collaboration to implement the national care leavers and accommodation 
and support framework, a key part of Corporate Parenting implications. 

 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.  
 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 consider and  

provide comment on the draft Housing Support Programme Strategy (Homelessness 
Strategy) 2022-2026 attached at Appendix 1 and associated Action Plan attached 
at Appendix 2. 

 

 
Background documents 
 
None 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bridgend County Borough Council Housing 

Support Programme Strategy 

  

2022-2026 

  

Page 15



 

 
 

Contents 

 

 
 

 Page Number 

1.0 Foreword 3 
   
2.0  
 

Introduction  4 

2.1 Purpose of the Strategy 
 

4 

2.2 
 
2.3 

Legislative and Policy Context 
 
Vision and Principles  

4 
 

7 

3.0 
 

Needs Assessment  8 

3.1 Needs Assessment Process 
 

8 

3.2 Key Findings 
 

8 

3.3 Conclusion   
 

11 

4.0 
 
4.1 
 
4.2 

Stakeholder Engagement  
 
Stakeholders Engaged With 
 
Stakeholder Feedback 

12 
 

12 
 

13 
 

5.0 
 
6.0 
 
6.1 
 
6.2 
 
7.0 
 
7.1 
 
7.2 
 
7.3 
 
 
 

Strategic Priorities  
 
Impact Assessments  
 
Impact Assessment Process 
 
Key Findings 
 
Implementing, Monitoring and Reviewing the Strategy 
 
Working with Partners 
 
Funding Sources 
 
Monitoring, Reviewing and Evaluation Arrangements 
 
 
Annex A – Action Plan  
 
Annex B – Rapid Rehousing Transition Plan  
 
 

17 
 

21 
 

21 
 

21 
 

21 
 

21 
 

22 
 

22 

Page 16



 

 
 

1.0 Foreword 

We are pleased to present Bridgend County Borough Council’s Housing Support 
Programme Strategy 2022-2026. This strategy outlines the Council’s strategic priorities, 
our objectives and what we, alongside our partners aim to do over the next four years, to 
tackle homelessness across the county borough.  
 
Since publishing our last homelessness strategy, we have developed and delivered 
services which have helped to successfully prevent and relieve the homelessness of 
thousands of households, including safeguarding vulnerable households during the peak 
of the Covid 19 pandemic.  
 
Our strategy recognises that our services face significant challenges, including the impact 
of the Covid 19 pandemic. In particular, we have seen an exponential rise in the number of 
households accessing our services and entering temporary accommodation.   
  
As we exit the direct pressure of the pandemic our local communities are now facing a 
cost-of-living crisis, which is impacting across all areas of society. With the needs of 
households becoming more complex and time critical, the demand for affordable housing 
and support services is unprecedented. This strategy sets out how we will work 
collaboratively with our partners and third sector services to ensure homelessness is rare, 
brief and unrepeated. 
  
The scale of the challenge ahead should not be underestimated. However, with the 
continued commitment to our strategic priorities and with the development of the new 
Rapid Rehousing approach to homelessness we hope to make a real change within our 
community.  
 

 

 

 

 

Councillor Rhys Goode 

Cabinet Member Wellbeing and Future Generations  

 

 

Page 17



 

 
 

2.0 Introduction  

2.1 Purpose of the Strategy 

This strategy sets out Bridgend County Borough Council’s strategic direction for delivering 

homelessness and housing related support services for 2022-2026. It encompasses the 

strategic requirements as set out in Welsh Government’s Housing Support Grant 

Guidance and the statutory requirements for a Homelessness Strategy set out in Part 2 of 

the Housing (Wales) Act 2014. The strategy will have a mid-point review, after 2 years. 

This four year strategy replaces the Authority’s ‘Strategy to Tackle Homelessness in 

Bridgend County Borough 2018-2022’. It identifies key priorities for Bridgend County 

Borough Council and its partners, in the delivery of homelessness prevention and other 

housing related support services. These priorities have been developed following a 

substantial review of homelessness and housing related support services, the cornerstone 

of which was a comprehensive needs assessment and stakeholder engagement.  

The delivery of the priorities set out in this strategy will support Welsh Government’s 

commitment to making homelessness rare, brief and unrepeated, with a priority given to 

homelessness prevention. It supports the ambitions for a transitional shift to a rapid 

rehousing approach, as specified in Welsh Government’s Rapid Rehousing Transition 

Plans. The strategy also sets out how the Local Authority will continue to meet presenting 

demands as we move through the Covid 19 pandemic.  

An action plan and Rapid Rehousing Transitional Plan support the delivery of the strategic 

priorities set out.  

2.2 Legislative and Policy Context 

Whilst this strategy sets a single strategic vision for homelessness and housing related 

support services, it is important that it is considered as part of a wider national and local 

context.  

The development and delivery of this strategy will contribute to the following national 

legislation and policy: 

Ending Homelessness in Wales: A High Level Action Plan 2021-2026 

The Action Plan details the work required by the Welsh Government and its partners to 

end homelessness in Wales. The Action Plan draws on the Welsh Government’s Strategy 

for Preventing and Ending Homelessness and the work of the expert Homelessness Action 

Group (HAG). The HAG engaged extensively with a wide range of stakeholders, including 

people who have had personal experiences of homelessness. 

 

Equality Act 2010  

This Act legally protects people from discrimination and sets out how all public bodies, 

including Local Authorities, need to consider discrimination, the needs of people who are 

disadvantaged or those who suffer inequality when shaping policies, delivering services 

and within all day-to-day work.  

 

Housing (Wales) Act 2014 and potential future changes relating to ‘priority need’ 

This Act reformed homelessness law and strengthened the duty on Local Authorities to 

prevent homelessness. The Housing Support Grant links in with Part 2 of the Act as it 

Page 18



 

 
 

funds provisions aimed at preventing homelessness and/or supporting those who are 

homeless.  

 

The ethos of the legislation is prevention, but true prevention starts far earlier than  

the 56 days set out in the legislation. The homelessness legislation should be seen as the 

safety net when all other preventative actions have failed. 

 

Housing Support Grant Practice Guidance 

The Housing Support Grant (HSG) is an amalgamation of three existing grants - 

Supporting People Programme, Homelessness Prevention Grant and Rent Smart Wales 

Enforcement.  

 

The HSG is an early intervention grant designed to support activity which prevents people 

from becoming homeless, stabilises their housing situation or helps potentially homeless 

people to find and keep accommodation. The emphasis is on working together to prevent 

homelessness and where it cannot be prevented ensuring it is rare, brief and un-repeated. 

To do this we need to tackle the root cause of homelessness and work to enable people to 

stay in their own homes longer.   

 

It supports vulnerable people to address the, sometimes, multiple problems they face, 

such as debt, unemployment, tenancy management, substance misuse, violence against 

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and mental health issues.  

 

The HSG allows a single costed strategy at local level and ensures a continuum of 

services to most effectively address local need. Whilst services are commissioned at a 

local level, Welsh Government will continue to develop national programmes to 

complement. 

 

National Housing Pathway for Ex-Service Personnel 

This Housing Pathway is a response to one of the key concerns of serving personnel on 

leaving the Armed Forces: finding suitable accommodation and knowing where to find help 

 

It ensures practitioners and stakeholders are aware of their responsibilities under the 

Armed Forces Covenant and the Housing (Wales) Act 2014. In particular, Part 2 which 

addresses the duties on Local Authorities to provide preventative homelessness services, 

and also other relevant frameworks and good practice.  

 

In recognition of their service to their country, the Welsh Government believes that  

every former member of the Armed Forces should have help, if needed, to find suitable 

accommodation, whether directly on discharge or later in life. 

 

National pathway for homelessness services to children, young people and adults in the 

secure estate in Wales 

The National Pathway is designed to support Local Authorities, Youth Offending Teams 

and the Wales Community Rehabilitation Company to carry out their responsibilities in 

respect of providing services to people due to leave the secure estate. The Pathway offers 

a significant opportunity to help individuals avoid homelessness on release from custody.  

 

Page 19



 

 
 

Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016 

This Act aims to simplify the process of renting a home in Wales and to provide parties 

with more information about their rights and obligations, giving tenants more security in 

their tenancy.  

 

This piece of legislation will have a direct impact on the number of households accessing 

homelessness services as there have been several changes which will benefit tenants. 

Landlords will no longer be able to issue retaliation eviction notices, one person leaving a 

joint tenancy no longer automatically ends the tenancy for all and a new succession right 

for carers has been created.  

 

Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 

This Act aims to improve the contribution individuals, and their carers, have in the care and 

support they receive. By making decisions about their care and support, in equal 

partnership with professionals, the aim is to improve wellbeing.  

 

Part 9 of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 requires Local Authorities to 

make arrangements to promote co-operation with their relevant partners and others, in 

relation to adults with needs for care and support, carers and children. The focus on a 

multi-agency approach will help make sure the principles of voice and control are achieved 

through the design and operation of services. It also provides Welsh Ministers with 

regulation making powers in relation to formal partnership arrangements, resources for 

partnership arrangements (including pooled funds) and partnership boards.  

 

Each local health board, and the local authorities within that local health board area, are 

required to put in place a partnership arrangement to undertake the population 

assessment of care and support needs for adults, children and carers. 

 

Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015  

The principal objective of the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence (Wales) Act 2015 is to improve the public sector response in Wales to gender-

based violence, domestic abuse and sexual violence. Public bodies, including Local 

Authorities, have a responsibility to improve arrangements to promote awareness of, and 

prevent, protect and support victims of gender-based violence, domestic abuse, sexual 

violence and modern slavery.  

 

Welsh Government Strategy to End Homelessness 2019 

This sets out the strategic approach Welsh Government are taking to prevent and address 

homelessness in Wales. The overarching pledge is to make homelessness rare, brief and 

unrepeated.  

 

The policy statement highlights the need to shift energy and resources to preventing 

homelessness from happening in the first place. Welsh Government are clear, 

homelessness cannot be prevented through housing alone. The strategy advocates a 

desire to get a range of public services, not simply housing services, working 

collaboratively to prevent and alleviate homelessness. 

 

 

Page 20



 

 
 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the seven well-being goals 

The Act requires public bodies, including Local Authorities in Wales, to think about the 

long-term impact of their decisions, to work better with people, communities and each 

other, and to prevent persistent problems such as poverty, health inequalities and climate 

change. 

 

It aims to improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales 

by taking action to ensure current and future generations have a good quality of life. Local 

Authorities need to think about the long-term impact of their decisions.  

 

Prevention is a key focus of the sustainable development principle and this replicates the 

central aims of the Housing Support Grant. 

 

Locally the development and delivery of this strategy will contribute to the following 

policies: 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Corporate Plan 2023-2028 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Older Person’s Housing, Care and Support Strategy 

2022 – 2027 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Housing Support Grant Delivery Plan 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Social Housing Allocation Policy 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate Service 

Delivery Plan 2020-2025 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Rapid Rehousing Protocol  

• Bridgend County Borough Council Welsh Language Promotion Strategy 2021 to 2026 

• Bridgend Public Services Board Well-being Plan  

• Cwm Taff Morgannwg VAWDASV Strategy 2022-2026 

• BCBC Corporate Parenting Strategy and the need to improve joint working across 

housing and social services, to meet the needs of care experienced children and young 

people.  

 

2.3 Vision and Principles 

This strategy sets out Bridgend County Borough Council’s (BCBC) four year vision for the 
delivery of homelessness and housing related support services. Our vision for the strategy 
underpins Bridgend’s overall vision to act as “one council working together to improve 
lives”.  
 
Our vision for homelessness and housing support services is: 
 
“To work in partnership with stakeholders to prevent homelessness, ensuring that 
where prevention is not possible, homelessness is rare, brief and unrepeated. 
Those who access services will be given the support required to live as 
independently as possible.” 
 
Our principles are to: 
 

• Work collaboratively with other agencies and regions to prevent and relieve 

homelessness 

Page 21



 

 
 

• Ensure our services have a person centred and holistic approach, providing the most 

effective support for service users   

• Build resilience within individuals, enabling them to help resolve their own issues 

• Utilise resources efficiently, recognising that housing is a scarce resource 

Our aims are to: 
 

• Prioritise the prevention of homelessness, ensuring early intervention 

• Continue to improve collaboration between the statutory functions within the Local 
Authority 

• Continue to improve working arrangements between the Local Authority and 
Registered Social Landlords to facilitate co-operation in line with Section 95 of the 
Housing (Wales) Act 2014 

• Ensure that support and accommodation options are accessible and available for all 
service users 
 

3.0 Needs Assessment  

3.1 Needs Assessment Process 

The Needs Assessment process undertaken as part of the development of this strategy 

has involved a comprehensive assessment of a range of data sets, which have informed a 

Statement of Need.  

Our needs assessment and Statement of Need has analysed data sets, including 

population needs, common housing register waiting lists, homelessness statistics and 

Housing Support Grant outcomes. An analysis of these data sets helps us to understand 

the current and future needs for homelessness and housing related support services.  

3.2 Sets out the key findings, from the Statement of Need 

The Population  

• The population of Bridgend is increasing and the rate of the increase in Bridgend is 

higher than the overall Welsh population increase. The population of Bridgend grew 

4.5% between 2011 and 2021, compared to a national increase of 1.4% over the same 

period. The Office for National Statistics predicts that the population of Bridgend will 

grow by at least a further 3% by 2030.  

 

• The population of Bridgend is ageing. Whilst, as highlighted above, there was an 

increase in population between 2011 and 2021, many of the younger age groups saw a 

percentage decrease during this period whilst all age groups beyond the age of 50 saw 

a percentage increase. In 2021 21% of the population of Bridgend were aged 65 or 

over.  

Homelessness Applications  

• Since our 2018-2022 Homelessness Strategy, homelessness applications to BCBC 

have increased significantly. Applications increased from 1,032 applications in 2017/18 

to 1,290 in 2021/22, representing a 25% increase.  

 

Page 22



 

 
 

• The number of applications received in 2020/21 was the highest annual amount BCBC 

has ever received, peaking at 1,612.  

 

• The average number of homelessness applications BCBC receives has increased from 

an average of 908 per year between 2014/15 and 2017/28 to an average of 1,363 

between 2018/19 and 2021/22.  Applications to the Council have therefore increased 

significantly.  

 

• Applications from single person households accounts for a significant proportion of all 

applications and this proportion has increased over the last 4 years. In 2018/19 and 

20219/20 single person applications accounted for 61-64% of all applications, whilst in 

2020/21 and 2021/22 this percentage increased to 68-73%.  

 

• The majority of homelessness applications are from those aged 25 and over, whilst 

applications from 16 & 17 year olds have decreased. In 2021/22 applications from 

individuals of these ages accounted for 3% (34 applicants) of all applications, whilst in 

2018/19 they accounted for 6% (78 applicants) of all applications.  

Temporary Accommodation  

• Temporary accommodation placements by the Council have increased significantly. 

Between the end of March 2019 and the end of January 2023 there was a 251% 

increase in temporary accommodation placements. At the end of January there were 

249 households in temporary accommodation.  

 

• The most significant increase in temporary accommodation was between 2019/20 and 

2020/21 i.e. the first year of the Covid 19 pandemic. This period alone saw a 

percentage increase of 101% in placements (83 placements at the end of 2019/20 to 

167 placements at the end of 2020/21.  

 

• To meet the demand, temporary accommodation stock increased 159% between 

February 2020 and July 2023. The majority of additional units taken on have been from 

the tourism sector, such as holiday lets and B&B’s. Having not routinely been used at 

all in February 2020, tourism units now make up 51% of the Council’s temporary 

accommodation capacity.  

 

• The cost of the additional units of accommodation is significant and has increased 

exponentially. The cost of temporary accommodation to the Council increased by 

2196% between 2019/20 and 2021/22. Again the most significant increase in cost in 

the first year of the Covid 19 pandemic. This period alone saw a percentage increase 

of 1604% in costs (£135,000 in 2019/20 to £2,300,000 in 2020/21).  

 

• Whilst the majority of temporary accommodation placements last under 6 months, the 

length of time spent in temporary accommodation has increased, with an increase in 

the number of households spending 6 – 12 months in placements.  

 

 

Page 23



 

 
 

Rough Sleepers 

• The number of rough sleepers, compared to the number of homelessness 

presentations is relatively very low. Between November 2020 and December 2022 the 

average number of rough sleepers identified at the end of each month was 5. Over the 

same period there was a range of 1 to 13 identified rough sleepers at any one time.   

Private Rent Sector  

• According to the Office for National Statistics the number of people privately renting in 

Bridgend has increased from 12.3% of the population in 2011 to 15.3% in 2021.  

 

• A desktop search of available privately rented properties in July 2023 suggests that 

there are no properties available to rent at Local Housing Allowance or Universal Credit 

rates.  

 

• The average private rental costs in Bridgend are vastly in excess of Local Housing 

Allowance or Universal Credit rates. These challenges are particularly acute for larger 

family homes, with the average rent for 3 and 4 bedroom properties over double the 

equivalent Local Housing Allowance rates.  

Social Housing and the Common Housing Register  

• The number of households on the Council’s Common Housing Register increased by 

212% between March 2020 and February 2023. As of July 2023, there were 2,629 

households on the Common Housing Register.  

 

• The majority of households on the Common Housing Register (59%) are waiting for an 

allocation of a 1 bedroom property.  

 

• There are more households on the Common Housing Register for 4 and 5 bedroom 

properties, than there are units of social housing stock across the borough. As such 

even if all of those in 4 and 5 bedroom social housing properties vacated, enabling an 

allocation to those on the Common Housing Register, there would still not be enough 

properties to meet this particular need. In the case of 5 bedroom properties the number 

of households on the Common Housing Register (34 households) is nearly 6 times as 

much as the number of 5 bedroom social housing units (6).  

Housing Support Grant (HSG)  

• The number of households being supported by HSG funded services is increasing. 

Between 2018 and 2021/22 there was an increase of 31% in the number of households 

accessing services. in 2021/22 2,970 households were supported by HSG funded 

services.  

 

• Since 2018 the most common support need of those accessing services has been 

those requiring support to prevent homelessness. Those over the age of 55 and 

requiring support has consistently been the second highest support need. Households 

requiring support with mental health, women experiencing domestic abuse and single 

persons aged 25-54 are also common support needs of those accessing services.   

 

Page 24



 

 
 

• The majority of households accessing HSG funded services have more than 1 support 

need (between 58% and 60%). Between 34% and 45% have more than 2 support 

needs.  

 

• HSG funded services support households across a range of tenures with those in 

temporary accommodation supported more than any other tenure type.  

Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse & Sexual Violence (VAWDASV)  

• BCBC VAWDASV services are supporting more individuals deemed to be ‘High Risk’, 

with an increase of 91% in referrals of this nature between 2021 and 2022, alone.  

Looked After Children in Bridgend  

• Since 2018/19 19.1% of care leavers have made a homelessness application (55 

individuals). Of these 55 individuals 56.4% have gone on to make more than 1 

homelessness application.  

 

• On average, homelessness applications from care leavers accounted for 2.5% of all 

homelessness applications between 2020 and 2022 and 11.3% of applications from all 

18-24 year olds who presented as homeless or threatened with homelessness over the 

same time period.  

 

• The average age, at the point of a care leavers first application, was 19 years and 7 

months. This suggests that individuals are not presenting as homeless directly after 

leaving care, but on average within the first 2 years of doing so.  

3.3 Conclusion  

➢ Demand for homelessness and housing support services has dramatically 

increased 

All data analysis, including a review of homelessness services, the common housing 

register and Housing Support Grant funded services, evidences that demand for 

homelessness and housing support services is increasing. Whilst the population of 

Bridgend is increasing and at a faster rate than the national average, the level of increase 

in demand on homelessness and housing related support services is exponential. 

Whilst in and around the time of the Covid pandemic we saw an increase in demand for 

services, it is clear that demands on services are increasing for reasons more broadly, 

than just the pandemic alone.  

Demand was increasing prior to the pandemic and whilst some measures suggest a peak 

was reached during 2020/21, there remains high demand for services, which significantly 

outweighs the demands at the time of our last homelessness strategy. 

A key demand pressure is from single persons who make up an increasing proportion of 

all homelessness presentations and demand on the common housing register.   

➢ Temporary Accommodation resources are a particular pressure point 
 

Page 25



 

 
 

The key findings relating to demands on temporary accommodation are stark. A 251% 
increase in placements, 101% increase in available units and 2196% increase in costs all 
point to an area of service which is under severe pressure.  
 
The extreme increase in costs can largely be attributed to a new reliance on tourism 
accommodation units, which now account for 51% of all temporary accommodation stock, 
having previously not been routinely utilised for this purpose. 
 
The dramatic increase in temporary accommodation demand in 2020/21 appears to be a 
direct result of the ‘All In’ approach from the Welsh Government. With temporary changes 
to legislation now being mainstreamed into primary legislation it is not likely that these 
demands will decrease.   
 
➢ Support needs of individuals accessing services are significant  
 
The level of demand for housing related support services has increased over recent years, 
suggesting that generally the need for support to prevent homelessness and live 
independently is also increasing.  
 
Whilst improvements to gateway processes and increased provision will play a part in 
increased numbers being supported, the level of support needs are also significant. The 
majority of households have more than 1 support need, whilst up to 45% of individuals 
supported have at least 2 support needs.  
 
Households are presenting with housing related support needs, across all tenures of 
accommodation.  
 
➢ There is limited availability of affordable accommodation 
 
Analysis shows that there is limited availability of accommodation in both the private and 
social rent sectors, with average private rent costs soaring way above Local Housing 
Allowance rates and social housing stock not being available to meet increasing demands 
on the Common Housing Register.  
 
A lack of affordable accommodation in itself has likely had an impact on the demand for 
homelessness and housing support services as households find it harder to resolve 
situations themselves, before turning to the Council for support. Equally it is harder for 
those in temporary accommodation settings to move on.   
 

4.0 Stakeholder Engagement Homeless Review   

4.1 Stakeholders Engagement Process  

A wide range of stakeholders, operating across the County Borough of Bridgend were 
engaged as a key part of the Homeless Review process and the development of the 
Council’s Homelessness Strategy 2022-2026. 
 
A wide range of semi-structured individual and group interviews were undertaken with; the 
front line Housing Solutions, Rehousing and Commissioning Teams (who comprise staff 
delivering the Housing Department’s principal functions), with middle tier managers with 
operational oversight of and responsibility for service delivery and oversight of and 
responsibility for service review, scrutiny, development and commissioning.  Also with 

Page 26



 

 
 

senior managers who hold the strategic remit for all housing functions and duties across 
the Authority and also with a local Elected Member, who is also a Cabinet Member.   
 
These interviews were complimented with face to face and telephone semi-structured 
interviews with a wider range of operational and strategic partners drawn from other 
Directorates within BCBC, as well as widely from across the statutory and voluntary 
sectors. Again these interviewees have ranged from front line support staff, through to 
project managers and those with key strategic responsibility and oversight for service 
design, delivery, function and evaluation. 
 
A number of face to face and phone interviews were undertaken with service users who 
have used BCBC’s front line housing services which provided direct feedback and an 
appraisal of the Housing Department’s functions, effectiveness and impact, as viewed from 
a customer perspective.  
 
Finally, wide reaching feedback was also gathered through use of the Survey Monkey 
online tool, in which questions were asked of stakeholders operating at a strategic and 
operational level in organisations drawn from across the statutory and voluntary sectors in 
Bridgend. 
 
Through at least one of the above methods the following organisations have been 
engaged with: 
 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Housing Solutions & Housing Strategy Team 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Senior Management & Cabinet Member for Well-

being and Future Generations 

• National Probation Service and members of Bridgend MAPPA planning group  

• South Wales Police  

• V2C Housing Association  

• Linc Cymru Housing Association     

• Wales & West Housing Association 

• Hafod Housing Association 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Social Services (both Adult and Children’s Services 

Teams) 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Prevention and Wellbeing Team 

• Bridgend County Borough Council Education and Family Support Team 

• Members of Bridgend Community Safety Partnership  

• Bridgend VAWDASV Partnership and members of Bridgend MARAC 

• Cwm Taf Morgannwg Health Board  

• Individuals with lived experience 

• The six service providers commissioned by BCBC through the Housing Support Grant 

funding programme 

• Bridgend Association of Voluntary Organisations 

• Bridgend Citizen’s Advice Bureau 

4.2 Stakeholder Feedback 
 
The feedback gathered from the stakeholders listed above has been invaluable in adding 

narrative to the Needs Assessment and ultimately developing the Strategic Priorities set 

out in this strategy. Key messages from the feedback provided are set out below: 

Page 27



 

 
 

From Service Users: 

• More hostels with staff providing support was requested, and a problem with the supply 
of suitable (temporary and permanent) accommodation was identified as a consistent 
theme. 

 

• Those leaving prison wanted to see better links between prisons and housing officers, 
as feedback from service users painted a disjointed picture between key agencies 
working with those being made or facing homelessness on release from prison. 
Consistent experiences were of planning around addressing housing needs being left 
until the day of release. 

 

• Some service users felt that communication between them and Housing Department 
could be better and that those who had waited longest should be prioritised for 
housing.  
 

• Some service users felt that the ‘homeless to housing’ process could be quicker, 
although none were specific about what a shorter timeline could and should look like. 
Equally, timescales varied for individuals interviewed, from a couple of weeks in the 
application process to a number of months in other cases. The majority of interviewees 
understood the impact that Covid had on this.  

 
From professionals across the statutory and voluntary sectors: 
 

• Housing Department staff demonstrated a clear motivation and commitment to their 

jobs, but staff turnover, recruitment issues and the subsequent use of agency staff 

have added considerable pressure during a period of unprecedented demand on 

services (during the Covid pandemic).  

 

• Stakeholders recognised the demands placed on the Housing Department throughout 

the pandemic, but they wanted Housing Solutions advisors to have a broader 

knowledge and skill set for working with service users with diverse, and complex needs 

and of the impact of trauma. 

 

• Housing staff and external stakeholders wanted to establish pathways that supported 

earlier planning and intervention that prevented homelessness and avoided crisis case 

management. This was most evident for young people leaving care and those leaving 

the secure estate. 

 

• The new online Jigsaw application system had been invaluable in managing demand 

throughout the pandemic as housing staff adopted to new ways of working. However, 

service users, researchers and professionals described difficulties in using the system. 

Improvements were also needed to ensure Housing Solutions advisors could store and 

retrieve information with greater ease.  

 

• Stakeholders acknowledged that more traditional methods of engagement, such as 

face to face work with service users is still needed by some people. However, the 

Page 28



 

 
 

pandemic has equally shown that many people prefer more remote and flexible 

methods of support, such as video-call, text messaging and email.  

 

• Stakeholders described the difficulties that some service users experienced with the 

application and assessment process being conducted online and over the phone and 

requested a better balance from Housing Solutions advisors with regard to offering face 

to face assessments. 

  

• There was recognition that across Directorates within the Authority there is a need to 

develop a better understanding of each other’s priorities, pressures and limitations. 

This could pave the way for developing better pathways, joint working practices and 

establishing clear expectations of each other’s roles. 

 

• From staff across BCBC there was an acknowledgement that there was a significant 

opportunity for greater collaboration at a strategic level and the development of a joint 

commissioning strategy, using joint resources and needs analysis to better inform 

planning and service development. 

 

• A range of stakeholders felt that more could be done within BCBC Education Services 

and with the core school curriculum to develop children’s wider life skills that contribute 

to primary prevention and equip and prepare children in identifying and addressing 

housing related issues that can lead to homelessness.  

 

• A number of stakeholders spoke highly of the amount and variety of supported 

accommodation available within the Borough, but many felt more was needed to 

ensure options were available so that service users were placed in suitable 

accommodation. This was most evident for young people leaving care, those with 

mental health needs, more complex needs, and for people whose needs were of a 

more persistent nature requiring longer term and for those requiring assistance from 

‘wet’ accommodation and support. 

 

• Many stakeholders commented on a lack of sufficient mental health provision, both in 

respect of supported accommodation provision and in relation to access to and 

provision of statutory mental health services.  

 

• Evidence reviewed illustrates that individuals and households accessing homelessness 

services are presenting with increasing and often multi-faceted support needs. Co-

terminus with this there is developing challenges across the provider sector in meeting 

demand from, and the needs of, those with substance use issues who present with risk 

behaviour management issues. Increased models of intensive and longer term 

supported accommodation, for example a ‘wet house’ or static type housing first 

service, are examples of how this need could potentially be met.  

 

• Third Sector providers and agencies operating within the public protection and 

safeguarding arena described joint working with the Housing Department as very good. 

However, Housing Department staff consistently noted the need for better provision of 

Page 29



 

 
 

information sharing and adoption of risk management procedures from Probation and 

mental health services, as specific examples.  

 

• Homeless Cell meetings and the multi-agency approach adopted between the 

assertive outreach service, the Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board Complex 

Needs Outreach Team allied to the range of’ bricks and mortar’ accommodation 

services in meeting the needs of rough sleepers were described as being ‘gold 

standard’. 

 

• The demands on temporary accommodation were noted as presenting a significant 

challenge, in respect of cost, availability and suitability to the needs of service users. 

The provision and use of temporary accommodation provision should be reviewed, in 

line with a Rapid Rehousing Transitional Plan.  

 

• The shift to Rapid Rehousing due to the pandemic was recognised for its effectiveness 

in driving a coordinated approach to moving people on from temporary 

accommodation. However, balance was requested to ensure people were also moved 

on from supported accommodation, with concerns being raised at the length of a 

person’s stay becoming potentially detrimental to their longer term wellbeing. 

 

• RSLs were keen to establish reciprocal agreements that formalised the flexible way 

they work with each other. There was recognition of the need to review the Social 

Housing Allocation Policy in light of the permanent transition to Rapid Rehousing, the 

Common Housing Register, and in meeting the needs of Housing First service users. 

 

• All stakeholders recognised the limited amount of affordable and suitable 

accommodation across all sectors. There was broad consensus that increased 

affordable stock across both the social and private housing sectors is vital in preventing 

and relieving homelessness. 

 

• The level of voids within and among RSL partners was highlighted as being a serious 

concern, especially whilst such a significant number of people are currently being 

accommodated by Bridgend CBC in temporary accommodation.  

 

• There are opportunities to utilise a number of funding streams (Housing Support Grant 

and Social Housing Grant), to respond to these challenges and to develop varied 

support models. However, despite recent increases in Social Housing Grant, the multi-

faceted nature of capital build programmes continued to present challenges in building 

new homes.  Furthermore, innovative responses are needed to tackle the challenges 

faced in increasing the supply of private sector properties available to the Authority. 

 

• Support providers value and requested consideration be given to reinstating the 

Providers Forum, as the move towards the ‘new normal’ continues, following the Covid 

19 pandemic. 

 

Page 30



 

 
 

• The Homeless Cell and Rapid Rehousing Panel meetings developed as part of 

Bridgend CBC’s homelessness response to the Covid 19 panel are well valued, but 

there were calls for reviewing the latter in light of the permanent shift towards Rapid 

Rehousing.  

 

• Partner organisations should ensure steps are taken within their own organisations to 

support the homelessness agenda, in acknowledgement that homelessness is a cross 

cutting issue and cannot be tackled by one organisation alone.  

 

• Housing related support services need to continue to be regularly monitored and 

reviewed to ensure the continued provision of high quality services, that there are 

opportunities to identify gaps in provision, and to develop greater insight as to what 

works and doesn’t work when preventing and relieving homelessness.   

 

• The Housing Department’s roles, structure, processes, and training and support should 

be reviewed to ensure resources, pathways, communication, and consistent wellbeing 

support to all staff promote more effective and valued service delivery.  

 

• There was broad recognition that there were insufficient opportunities and mechanisms 

in place to involve people with lived experience in the design, and evaluation of 

services. 

 

• There is opportunity for the Housing Department to develop and embed a more 

psychologically informed culture and service offer through embracing the Trauma 

Informed Practice and Psychologically Informed Environments (PIE 2.0) framework in 

its commissioning, service delivery and monitoring. 

 

• A common theme from stakeholders was the need to provide more information to the 

public with regard to the causes, consequences and opportunities to help in tackling 

homelessness.    

5.0 Strategic Priorities  

The Local Authority has developed the following strategic priorities, which are set with the 

ambition of delivering our vision for homelessness and housing related support services. 

These strategic priorities have been developed following the development of our 

Statement of Need and stakeholder engagement, as well as national and local legislation 

and policy.    

Strategic Priority  Rationale  Objectives  

1. Increase the supply of 
suitable accommodation 
to meet the housing 
needs of applicants  

The stark shortage of suitable 
housing is the biggest 
challenge the Local Authority 
faces, with demand 
significantly outweighing 
supply.  
 
Homelessness applications 
and demand to the Common 

• Increase the supply of 

suitable social housing, 

which is available to meet 

local need.  

 

• Increase the availability of 

suitable private rent sector 

properties.  

Page 31



 

 
 

Housing Register have 
consistently increased over a 
period of time.  
 
The current supply of social 
housing through RSL partners 
is insufficient to meet 
demands.  
 
The availably of affordable 
private rent sector 
accommodation is low, with 
market rents outstripping 
Local Housing Allowance 
rates. 

 

• Promote and encourage 

the leasing or rental of 

private sector properties 

and the continued 

engagement of Private 

Rented Sector landlords.  

 

• Work with RSL partners to 

ensure the best use of 

current stock to meet local 

need.  

 

2. To implement a Rapid 
Rehousing Transitional 
Plan 

The Welsh Government has 
set expectations for Local 
Authorities to develop and 
implement a Rapid Rehousing 
Transitional Plan.  
 
A Rapid Rehousing model is 
intended to support 
prevention and mitigate the 
impact of homelessness on 
households. Successful 
delivery will be key to 
managing the impact of 
increasing demands on 
homelessness services.  
 

• To work in partnership 

with stakeholders to 

implement the various 

elements as set out in the 

Rapid Rehousing 

Transitional Plan.  

 

• To prevent homelessness 

and the need for 

temporary 

accommodation.  

 

• To reduce the need for 

temporary accommodation 

and where needed to 

reduce the length of time 

households spend in 

temporary accommodation  

 

• To develop a model based 

on robust data, with clear 

evidence of need.  

 

Page 32



 

 
 

3. Provide an accessible, 
flexible and responsive 
service to meet needs, 
through a skilled and 
valued workforce 

There is a need for 
continuous improvements to 
be made to the accessibility 
of services, ensuring a 
flexible approach to identified 
need. 
 
There is an opportunity for 
existing Gateway functions to 
play a greater role in 
establishing better pathways, 
monitoring throughput and 
performance. 
 
People with lived experience 
should have a meaningful 
and impactful role in the 
development and monitoring 
of services.   
 
Better communication and 
promotion of homelessness 
prevention services could 
promote engagement at an 
earlier stage.  
 
There is an acknowledgement 
that through increased 
demands and complexity of 
work there are additional 
pressures on the workforce, 
which need to be resolved. 

• Ensure that services are 

accessible to all and 

response to those with 

additional needs 

 

• Extend and enhance the 

function and impact of the 

Gateway. 

 

• Improve ongoing 

engagement with those 

with lived experience. 

 

• Provide clear process and 

pathway information and 

raise the profile of current 

homelessness advice and 

support services, to 

encourage take up by 

individuals in housing 

need 

 

• Ensure sufficient capacity 

within the workforce to 

meet presenting demand.  

 

• Deliver services through a 

resilient and skilled 

workforce, which provides 

high quality provision and 

promotes staff wellbeing.  

 

4. To improve 
collaboration with key 
stakeholders at a 
strategic level to 
improve homelessness 
prevention 

Homelessness is not just a 
housing issue. Collaboration 
and partnerships with wider 
stakeholders have a key role 
to the successful prevention 
of homelessness.  
 
Improved understanding of 
wider pressures, priorities 
and limitations can lead to 
closer joint working and 
improved outcomes for 
individuals.  
 

• Increase in wider 

stakeholder ownership of 

homelessness to support 

upstream prevention.  

 

• Increased sharing of data 

to identify gaps, with the 

potential for increased 

jointly commissioned 

services.  

 

Page 33



 

 
 

A culture of joint shared 
ownership can improve, 
planning and commissioning, 
as well as supporting risk 
management.  
 
Better collaboration can 
improve corporate priorities, 
such as implementing the 
national care leavers and 
accommodation and support 
framework.  
 
 

• Establish an 

organisational culture of 

enquiry where data 

analysis and interpretation 

effectively inform service 

delivery.  

 

• To manage risk through 

stakeholders coming 

together to find joint 

solutions and outcomes 

 

• To work with regional 

partners to explore 

opportunities for service 

provision, which meets 

common needs.  

 

• To work with partners, 

including Social Services 

colleagues to implement 

the national care leavers 

accommodation and 

support framework.  

 

• To explore a range of 

good quality housing 

choices for young people 

and care leavers, which 

promotes independence, 

prolonged health and well-

being.  

 

• Improve joint working 

across housing and social 

services, utilising 

corporate parenting 

responsibilities. 

Page 34



 

 
 

5. Enhance and increase 
the services for those 
with complex needs 

The support needs of those 
presenting as homeless are 
significant. Often housing 
alone cannot address 
underlying issues preventing 
someone from securing or 
maintaining accommodation.  
 
There are a cohort of 
individuals who require 
intensive support models. 
These cases are often 
resource intensive to a range 
of public services 
 

• Develop services that can 

effectively support people 

with highly complex and 

possibly enduring needs. 

 

• Take a multi-agency 

approach to supporting 

those with complex needs. 

6. Take an assertive, 
collaborative and multi-
disciplined approach to 
support rough sleepers 

Rough sleeping is the sharp 
end and harshest form of 
homelessness. The 
vulnerability and risk posed to 
rough sleepers is often 
significant. 
 
The reasons as to why people 
sleep rough are often 
complex and deep routed. As 
such relieving the 
homelessness of rough 
sleepers can be challenging 
and requires resource and 
multi-agency involvement.    

 

• To keep the number of 

rough sleepers low and 

ensure that where rough 

sleeping does occur it is 

rare, brief and non-

recurring.  

 

• To provide assertive 

outreach to assist in the 

accurate identification of 

and support to rough 

sleepers 

 

• To ensure a multi-agency 

approach to supporting 

rough sleeping.  

 

 

6.0 Impact Assessments  

6.1 Impact Assessment Process  

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been completed at ‘screening stage’.  

6.2 Key Findings  

The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty and 

the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the development of 

this strategy.  

As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the impact of strategic decisions, 

such as the development or the review of policies, strategies, services and functions. It is 

considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of 

this report. 

Page 35



 

 
 

7.0 Implementing, Monitoring and Reviewing the Strategy  

7.1 Working with Partners 

The Local Authority cannot effectively implement the priorities in this Strategy alone. 

Collaboratively working with key partners such as health, social care and criminal justice is 

vital in order to deliver and optimise the impact of our priorities outlined within the strategy. 

We will work collaboratively to implement our Strategy by:  

• Ensuring that work is undertaken to develop and improve approaches to collaborative 
working across Directorates within Bridgend CBC and to ensure that this approach is 
matched with similar approaches to collaborative and joint working with stakeholders 
outside the Authority. 

 

• Making best use of the existing strategic and operational relationships across services 

and sectors in Bridgend that are well founded, long standing, creative and innovative in 

nature and responsiveness to need. There is a clear synergy in how services interlink 

across the sector and dovetail with assisting the Authority in meeting wider strategic 

initiatives. 

• Ensuring at an operational level that the Authority builds on the clear evidence of 

Housing Department staff making frequent and good use of the expertise and 

experience from other stakeholders and providers brought in to address complex 

needs achieving positive outcomes for services users. 

• Continuing multi-agency and partnership working at an operational level, which was 

evidenced as being a clear strength of the Housing Department. This approach and 

practice provide a template for the Authority to deliver on and optimise the impact of 

the Homelessness Strategy, through a model of joint working with Social Services, 

Probation and Mental Health services. 

• Ensuring that the working relationship with Health continues, as evidenced in the 

development of the Regional Complex Needs Outreach Team.  Contributing to further 

work with Health Services that has a broader focus for non-medical/clinical issues. The 

sharing of budgets and joint commissioning could promote more joined up thinking to 

address overlapping health and community support issues. 

• Considering developing relationships and multi-agency working between the Housing 

Department and other partners through the co-location of services or expertise in a 

central Hub. 

• Establishing focused and appropriate forums, by considering the purpose, 

membership, and frequency of all current, past and future meetings to ensure 

appropriate stakeholders are engaged in the forum/meetings most relevant to their 

roles and functions. 

7.2 Funding Sources 

Our vision and priorities within this strategy will be funded from grant allocations from the 

Welsh Government (WG), as well as core internal funding sources where appropriate. 

The Housing Support Grant (HSG) will be the main funding stream used to meet our 

priorities as set out in the strategy.  

Page 36



 

 
 

The Housing Support Grant allocation for Bridgend Council is as follows: 

2022-23 - £7,833,509.33 

2023-24 - £7,833,509.33 

2024-25 - £7,833,509.33 

Other applicable grants include the Social Housing Grant and the No One Left Out Grant.  
Our ambition is to work in collaboration with our partners such as Registered Social 
Landlords (RSLs) to ensure we jointly utilise all available funding sources to ensure we 
deliver on jointly agreed priorities.  To meet the significant increase in temporary 
accommodation costs, identified BCBC core funding has been and will be required to meet 
ongoing demands.   
 

7.3 Monitoring, Reviewing and Evaluation Arrangements 

Our strategic priorities will be communicated to partners in order to be implemented 

effectively. A two pronged, qualitative and quantitative approach to monitoring, reviewing 

and evaluating the delivery of the Strategy and Action Plan will be adopted.  

This will take the form of a RAG traffic light assessment and review process linked up to:  

1. BCBC giving due consideration to consulting with stakeholders and partners via an 

annual update and review using a narrative assessment of performance against 

priorities and objectives.  

2. Consideration being given to engaging with service users through an annual review 

process, either through existing service user involvement processes utilised by 

partners and stakeholders, or through the use of an online Survey Monkey style 

anonymised questionnaire. 

3. Identifying tangible KPIs, actions and outputs as detailed in the strategy and/or its 

action plan and conducting a quantitative assessment conducted at key milestones. 

This could be developed into a more comprehensive annual review and report, which 

again could be disseminated among stakeholders, through existing strategic meeting 

structures. 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

 

Bridgend County Borough Council Housing Support Programme Strategy 2022-26 

Action Plan  

 Our Housing Support Programme Strategy sets out the Council’s strategic direction for delivering homelessness and housing 

related support services, between 2022 and 2026.  

The Strategy sets out six Strategic Priorities, with associated objectives. The six Strategic Priorities are: 

Strategic Priority 1: Increase the supply of suitable accommodation to meet the housing needs of applicants 

Strategic Priority 2: To implement a Rapid Rehousing Transitional Plan  

Strategic Priority 3: Provide an accessible, flexible and responsive service to meet needs, through a skilled and valued 

workforce 

Strategic Priority 4: To improve collaboration with key stakeholders at a strategic level to improve homelessness 

prevention 

Strategic Priority 5: Enhance and increase the services for those with complex needs 

Strategic Priority 6: Take an assertive, collaborative and multi-disciplined approach to support rough sleepers 

This Action Plan sets out each Strategic Priority and sets specific actions which will be taken forward, with the aim of achieving the 

priorities and objectives set out.  

 

 

P
age 39



APPENDIX 2 

 
Strategic Priority 1: Increase the supply of suitable accommodation to meet the housing needs of applicants 
 

Objective Action Responsibility Timescale (Short term <1 
year, Medium term 1-2 
years, Long term >3 years) 

• Increase the supply of 

suitable social housing, 

which is available to meet 

local need.  

 

• Increase the availability of 

suitable private rent sector 

properties.  

 

• Promote and encourage 

the leasing or rental of 

private sector properties 

and the continued 

engagement of Private 

Rented Sector landlords. 

 

• Work with RSL partners to 

ensure the best use of 

current stock to meet local 

need. 

• Work with RSL’s to utilise capital 
income streams, such as the Social 
Housing Grant to increase suitable 
social housing stock. 
 

• Wherever possible to work with RSL’s to 
repurpose existing stock to best meet 
local need. 

 

• Utilise available funding streams, 
including Empty Property Grants to 
bring Empty Properties back into use. 

 

• To continue and expand on the delivery 
of a private rent leasing service. 

 

• Explore schemes which incentivise 
private sector landlords to make their 
stock available for use to prevent and 
relieve homelessness. 

 

• Rekindle a local private landlord forum. 
 

• Continue ongoing engagement with 
RSL’s through operational and strategic 
meetings. 

BCBC, RSL’s  
 
 
 
 
BCBC, RSL’s 
 
 
 
BCBC, Private 
Sector Landlords  
 
 
BCBC, Private 
Sector Landlords 
 
 
BCBC, Private 
Sector Landlords 
 
 
BCBC, Private 
Sector Landlords 
 
BCBC, RSL’s 
 

Ongoing  
 
 
 
 
Ongoing  
 
 
 
Ongoing  
 
 
 
Short term / Ongoing 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
Medium Term  
 
 
Ongoing 
 

P
age 40



APPENDIX 2 

 

• Develop bespoke solutions to meet 
identified housing needs of those 
homeless or threatened with 
homelessness. 

 

• To explore new ownership models for 
affordable housing. 

 

 
 
BCBC, RSL’s 
 
 
 
BCBC 

 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
Medium Term / Ongoing  

 

 
Strategic Priority 2: To implement a Rapid Rehousing Transitional Plan  
 

Objective Action Responsibility Timescale (Short term <1 
year, Medium term 1-2 
years, Long term >3 years) 

• To work in partnership with 

stakeholders to implement 

the various elements as 

set out in the Rapid 

Rehousing Transitional 

Plan.  

 

• To prevent homelessness 

and the need for temporary 

accommodation.  

 

• To reduce the need for 

temporary accommodation 

• Adopt a 5 year Rapid Rehousing 
Transitional Plan and ensure that its 
purpose and role in supporting 
homelessness is clearly understood by 
all stakeholders and partners  
 

• Review, Appraise and amend if required 
the Councils Social Housing Allocation 
Policy, taking into consideration the 
views of key stakeholders. 

 

• Ensure a programme of monitoring and 
review is maintained to ensure current 
housing related support provision is fit 
for purpose and in line with BCBC’s 

BCBC, RSL’s, 
Commissioned 
Providers 
 
 
 
BCBC, RSL’s 
 
 
 
 
BCBC 
 
 
 

Short term  
 
 
 
 
 
Medium term 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing  
 
 
 

P
age 41



APPENDIX 2 

and where needed to 

reduce the length of time 

households spend in 

temporary accommodation  

 
 
 

• To develop a model based 

on robust data, with clear 

evidence of need. 

Rapid Rehousing Transitional Plan. 
Consider re purposing or re modelling 
provision, if required. 

 

• Identify and agree key data sets, which 
are frequently monitored and that can 
inform strategic planning. 
 

• Take forward the priorities and actions 
as set out in the Plan. 

 
 
 
 

• To explore longer term solutions to 
temporary accommodation including 
direct ownership by BCBC. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
BCBC, RSL’s, 
Commissioned 
Providers 
 
BCBC, RSL’s, 
Commissioned 
Providers, Private 
Sector Landlords  
 
 
BCBC 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Medium term 
 
 
 
Long term  
 
 
 
 
 
Medium term / Ongoing  

 

 
Strategic Priority 3: Provide an accessible, flexible and responsive service to meet needs, through a skilled and valued 
workforce 
 

Objective Action Responsibility Timescale (Short term <1 
year, Medium term 1-2 
years, Long term >3 years) 

• Ensure that services are 

accessible to all and 

• Review and enhance the operational 
elements of the Housing Support 
Gateway, including exploring the 

BCBC 
 
 
 

Medium term  
 
 
 

P
age 42



APPENDIX 2 

response to those with 

additional needs 

 

• Extend and enhance the 

function and impact of the 

Gateway. 

 

• Improve ongoing 

engagement with those 

with lived experience. 

 

• Provide clear process and 

pathway information and 

raise the profile of current 

homelessness advice and 

support services, to 

encourage take up by 

individuals in housing need 

 

• Ensure sufficient capacity 

within the workforce to 

meet presenting demand.  

 

• Deliver services through a 

resilient and skilled 

workforce, which provides 

high quality provision and 

promotes staff wellbeing.  

possibility for a tailored case 
management system.  
 

• Ensure engagement with those with 
lived experience as part of ongoing 
monitoring and commissioning 
exercises for homelessness and 
housing support services. 

 
 
 

• Make further enhancements to the 
housing Jigsaw system to ensure it 
meets the operational needs of the 
service and service user.  

 
 
 
 

• Ensure staff of both internal and 
commissioned services receive 
adequate training and support.  

 
 

• Regularly review staffing structures to 
ensure sufficient capacity to meet 
ongoing demand.  
 

 

 
 
BCBC, 
Commissioned 
Providers  
 
 
 
 
 
 
BCBC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BCBC, 
Commissioned 
Providers  
 
 
BCBC, 
Commissioned 
Providers  
 

 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Medium term  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing  
 
 
 
 
Ongoing  

P
age 43



APPENDIX 2 

 

 

 
Strategic Priority 4: To improve collaboration with key stakeholders at a strategic level to improve homelessness 
prevention 
 

Objective Action Responsibility Timescale (Short term <1 
year, Medium term 1-2 
years, Long term >3 years) 

• Increase in wider 

stakeholder ownership of 

homelessness to support 

upstream prevention.  

 

• Increased sharing of data 

to identify gaps, with the 

potential for increased 

jointly commissioned 

services.  

 

• Establish an organisational 

culture of enquiry where 

data analysis and 

interpretation effectively 

informs service delivery.  

 

• To manage risk through 

stakeholders coming 

• Explore opportunities for Bridgend Joint 
Commissioning, where appropriate. 

 
 
 
 

• Identify and agree key data sets with 
partner organisations which can inform 
performance management and 
monitoring that can inform future 
strategic planning. 

 

• Identify and meet with appropriate 
representatives to discuss a fresh 
approach to strategic level collaboration 
and agree key personnel and the 
frequency and format of future 
meetings. 

 

• Explore a multi-disciplinary approach for 
services that meet the needs of children 
and young people. 

BCBC, Other 
Statutory Services  
 
 
 
 
BCBC, RSL’s, 
Commissioned 
Providers, Other 
Statutory Services 
 
 
BCBC, RSL’s, 
Commissioned 
Providers, Other 
Statutory Services 
 
 
 
BCBC, 
Commissioned 
Providers  

Ongoing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Medium term  
 
 
 
 
 
Medium term  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Medium term   
 

P
age 44



APPENDIX 2 

together to find joint 

solutions and outcomes 

 

• To work with regional 

partners to explore 

opportunities for service 

provision, which meets 

common needs.  

 

• To work with partners, 

including Social Services 

colleagues to implement 

the national care leavers 

accommodation and 

support framework.  

 

• To explore a range of good 

quality housing choices for 

young people and care 

leavers, which promotes 

independence, prolonged 

health and well-being.  

 

• Improve joint working 

across housing and social 

services, utilising corporate 

parenting responsibilities. 

 

 
 

 

• Continue to engage with regional 
colleagues, including through the Cwm 
Taf Morgannwg Regional Collaborative 
Group (RCG) 
 
 

 

• Engage with Social Services colleagues 
and RSLs to promote the smooth 
transition for care leavers, in line with 
BCBC’s Corporate Parenting Strategy.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

.  

 

 
 
BCBC, Members 
of the RCG   
 
 
 
 
 
 
BCBC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Ongoing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 45



APPENDIX 2 

 

 
Strategic Priority 5: Enhance and increase the services for those with complex needs 
 

Objective Action Responsibility Timescale (Short term <1 
year, Medium term 1-2 
years, Long term >3 years) 

• Develop services that can 

effectively support people 

with highly complex and 

possibly enduring needs. 

 

• Take a multi-agency 

approach to supporting 

those with complex needs. 

• Take an evidenced based approach to 
identify gaps in service provision 
building an understanding of the multi-
agency response required to respond to 
needs for this client group. 

 

• To build on the current Housing First, 
wider complex needs provision, and 
assessment centre provision to increase 
the supply of accommodation and 
support services for those with complex 
needs. 

 

• Explore the development of 
accommodation models, which provide 
specialist intensive support, including 
Wet House provision (long term) 

 

• Build on the current commissioning 
practice which ensures that those with 
lived experience have a role in the 
commissioning of services based on the 
principles of a co-production model. 

 

BCBC, Support 
Providers, Other 
Statutory Services  
 
 
 
 
BCBC, RSL’s, 
Commissioned 
Providers 
 
 
 
 
BCBC, RSL’s, 
Commissioned 
Providers 
 
 
 
BCBC, 
Commissioned 
Providers  
 

Ongoing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Medium / Long term  
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing  
 

P
age 46



APPENDIX 2 

 

 
Strategic Priority 6: Take an assertive, collaborative and multi-disciplined approach to support rough sleepers 
 

Objective Action Responsibility Timescale (Short term <1 
year, Medium term 1-2 
years, Long term >3 years) 

• To keep the number of 

rough sleepers low and 

ensure that where rough 

sleeping does occur it is 

rare, brief and non-

recurring.  

 

• To provide assertive 

outreach to assist in the 

accurate identification of 

and support to rough 

sleepers 

 

• To ensure a multi-agency 

approach to supporting 

rough sleeping.  

. 

• Continue the multi-agency 
Homelessness Cell meetings and 
support to coordinate services for 
identified rough sleepers. 
 

• Work proactively with partners to ensure 
services support an ‘all in approach.  

 
 

• Review current outreach arrangements, 
now funded by the Housing Support 
Grant. 

 

BCBC, Support 
Providers, Other 
Statutory Services  
 
 
BCBC, RSL’s, 
Commissioned 
Providers 
 
BCBC, 
Commissioned 
Providers  
 

Ongoing  
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
Medium term  
 

 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
25 SEPTEMBER 2023 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL & REGULATORY SERVICES, HR 

& CORPORATE POLICY 
 

 
Responsible 
Officer:  

 
MERYL LAWRENCE 

SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER – SCRUTINY 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to 
the review and development of plans, policy or strategy that 
form part of the Council’s Policy Framework and 
consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the 
power to promote or improve economic, social or 
environmental wellbeing in the County Borough of 
Bridgend. Any changes to the structure of the Scrutiny 
Committees and the procedures relating to them would 
require the Bridgend County Borough Council Constitution 
to be updated. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to develop and implement a 
Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to propose items for the 
Forward Work Programme having regard for the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for 
the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have 
oversight and refer any cross-cutting topics to a Committee 
or Research and Evaluation Panel. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider and agree its Forward 
Work Programme, identify any specific information it 
wishes to be included in and any invitees they wish to 
attend for the reports for the next two Committee meetings, 
identify any further items for consideration on the Forward 
Work Programme having regard to the criteria set out in the 
report, consider the Recommendations Monitoring Action 
Sheet and note that the Forward Work Programme and the 
Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet for the Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be reported to the 
next meeting of COSC. 

 
  

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 
a) Present the Committee with the Forward Work Programme (Appendix A) for 

consideration and approval; 
 

b) Request any specific information the Committee identifies to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Request the Committee to identify whether there are presently any further items 
for consideration on the Forward Work Programme having regard to the 
selection criteria in paragraph 3.5 of this report; 
 

d) Present the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet (Appendix B) to track 
responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at previous meeting; 

 

e) Advise that the Committee’s updated Forward Work Programme, any feedback 
from the Committee and the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be 
reported to the next meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(COSC).  

 
2. Background  
 
2.1 The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

to develop and implement a Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
2.2 The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee to propose items for the Forward Work Programme having regard for 
the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have oversight and refer any cross-
cutting topics to a Committee or Research and Evaluation Panel. 

 
 Best Practice / Guidance 
 
2.3 The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny’s (CfGS) Good Scrutiny Guide recognises 

the importance of the Forward Work Programme. In order to ‘lead and own the 
process’, it states that Councillors should have ownership of their Committee’s work 
programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and evaluating it. The Good 
Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny workload 
should be coordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken 
in a timely and well-planned manner.  

 
2.4 Forward Work Programmes need to be manageable to maximize the effective use 

of the limited time and resources of Scrutiny Committees.  It is not possible to 
include every topic proposed.  Successful Scrutiny is about looking at the right topic 
in the right way and Members need to be selective, while also being able to 
demonstrate clear arguments for including or excluding topics.  

 

Page 50



 

2.5    The CfGS’s guide to effective work programming ‘A Cunning Plan?’ makes the 
following reference to the importance of good work programming: 

 
‘Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done 
well it can help lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely work on issues 
of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can end up 
wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any work done is likely to 
be minimal.’ 
 

 
3. Current situation / proposal  
 

Forward Work Programme 
 
3.1 Following the approval of the schedule of Scrutiny Committee meeting dates at the 

Annual Meeting of Council on 17 May 2023, the standing statutory reports to this 
Scrutiny Committee of: the Corporate Plan, the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) and Budget, Performance and Budget Monitoring, etc. have been mapped 
to the appropriate timely meeting dates into a draft Forward Work Programme. 

 
3.2  The draft outline Forward Work Programme for each Scrutiny Committee have been 

prepared using a number of difference sources, including:  
 

• Corporate Risk Assessment;  

• Directorate Business Plans; 

• Previous Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme report topics / minutes; 

• Committee / Member proposed topics; 

• Policy Framework; 

• Cabinet Work Programme; 

• Discussions with Corporate Directors; 

• Performance Team regarding the timing of performance information.  
 

3.3 There are items where there is a statutory duty for Policy Framework documents to 
be considered by Scrutiny, e.g., the MTFS including draft budget proposals 
scheduled for consideration in December 2023 and January 2024, following which 
COSC will coordinate the conclusions and recommendations from each of the 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committees in a report on the overall strategic 
overview of Cabinet’s draft Budget proposals to the meeting of Cabinet in February 
2024.   
 

3.4  An effective Forward Work Programme will identify the issues that the Committee 
wishes to focus on during the year and provide a clear plan.  However, at each 
meeting the Committee will have an opportunity to review this as the Forward Work 
Programme Update will be a standing item on the Agenda, detailing which items are 
scheduled for future meetings and be requested to clarify any information to be 
included in reports and the list of invitees.  The Forward Work Programme will remain 
flexible and will be revisited at each COSC meeting with input from each Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee reported and any updated information gathered 
from Forward Work Programme meetings with Corporate Directors. 

 
 
 

Page 51



 

 Identification of Further Items 
 
3.5 The Committee is reminded of the Criteria Form which Members can use to 

propose further items for the FWP which the Committee can then consider for 
prioritisation at a future meeting.  The Criteria Form emphasises the need to 
consider issues such as impact, risk, performance, budget and community 
perception when identifying topics for investigation and to maximise the impact 
scrutiny can have on a topic and the outcomes for people.  Criteria which can help 
the Committee come to a decision on whether to include a referred topic, are set out 
below: 

 
 Recommended Criteria for Selecting Scrutiny Topics: 
 
 PUBLIC INTEREST:  The concerns of local people should influence the issues 

chosen for scrutiny;  
 
 ABILITY TO CHANGE:  Priority should be given to issues that the Committee 

can realistically influence, and add value to;  
 
 PERFORMANCE:  Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council 

is not performing well;  
 
 EXTENT:  Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all 

or large parts of the County Borough, or a large number 
of the Authority’s service users or its population; 

 
 REPLICATION:  Work programmes must take account of what else is 

happening in the areas being considered to avoid 
duplication or wasted effort.  

 

 Reasons to Reject Scrutiny Topics: 
 

 • The issue is already being addressed / being examined elsewhere and change is   
              imminent.  

 • The topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and can be referred there).  

 • Scrutiny involvement would have limited / no impact upon outcomes. 

 • The topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial. 

 • The topic is too broad to make a review realistic and needs refining / scoping. 

 • New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year.  

 • The topic area is currently subject to inspection or has recently undergone  
    substantial change / reconfiguration. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
 

3.6 Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a local 
authority towards care experienced children and young people. This is a legal 
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children 
Act 2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek for children in public care the 
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a 
whole is the ‘Corporate Parent’, therefore all Members have a level of responsibility 
for care experienced children and young people in Bridgend. 

 

Page 52



 

3.7 In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how each item they consider 
affects care experienced children and young people, and in what way can the 
Committee assist in these areas. 
 

3.8 Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of 
the ongoing work of the Cabinet Committee Corporate Parenting and particularly 
any decisions or changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents. 

 
3.9 The Forward Work Programme for the Committee is attached as Appendix A for 

the Committee’s consideration. 
 
3.10 The Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet to track responses to the 

Committee’s recommendations made at the previous meeting is attached as 
Appendix B. 

 
 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
    
4.1  The Protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales,  

with 5 Ways of Working to guide how public services should work to deliver for 
people. The following is a summary to show how the 5 Ways of Working to achieve 
the well-being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this 
report: 

 

• Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the planning of Scrutiny 
business in both the short-term and in the long-term on its policies, budget and 
service delivery. 
 

• Prevention - The early preparation of the Forward Work Programme allows for 
the advance planning of Scrutiny business where Members are provided an 
opportunity to influence and improve decisions before they are made by 
Cabinet. 

 

• Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives. 
 

• Collaboration - Consultation on the content of the Forward Work Programme 
has taken place with the Corporate Management Board, Heads of Service and 
Elected Members. 

 

• Involvement - Advanced publication of the Forward Work Programme ensures 
that stakeholders can view topics that will be discussed in Committee meetings 
and are provided with the opportunity to engage. 

Page 53



 

 

5.2  When setting its Forward Work Programme, the Committee should consider how 
each item they propose to scrutinise assists in the achievement of the Council’s 7 
Wellbeing Objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 as follows :-   
 
1. A County Borough where we protect our most vulnerable 
2. A County Borough with fair work, skilled, high-quality jobs and thriving towns 
3. A County Borough with thriving valleys communities 
4. A County Borough where we help people meet their potential 
5. A County Borough that is responding to the climate and nature emergency 
6. A County Borough where people feel valued, heard and part of their community 
7. A County Borough where we support people to live healthy and happy lives  

 
 

6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects climate 

change, the Council’s Net Zero Carbon 2030 target and how it meets the Council’s 
commitments to protect and sustain the environment over the long term. There are 
no Climate Change Implications arising from this report.    
 
 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects care 

experienced children and young people, and in what way the Committee can assist 
in these areas. Safeguarding is everyone’s business and means protecting peoples’ 
health, wellbeing and human rights, and enabling them to live free from harm, abuse 
and neglect. There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications arising 
from this report.    

 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1   The Committee is recommended to: 

a) Consider and approve the Forward Work Programme for the Committee 
attached as Appendix A;  
 

b) Identify any specific information the Committee wishes to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Identify whether there are presently any further items for consideration on the 
Forward Work Programme having regard to the selection criteria in paragraph 
3.5 of this report. 
 

Page 54



 

d) Note the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet for the Committee attached 
as Appendix B to track responses to the Committee’s recommendations made 
at the previous meeting; 
 

e) Note that the Forward Work Programme, any feedback from the Committee and 
the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be reported to the next 
meeting of COSC. 

 

 

Background documents 
 
None.  

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

Forward Work Programme 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 

 
 

 
Monday 19 June 2023 at 4.00pm 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Update on the Shared 
Prosperity Fund  
 
Corporate Parenting 
Champion Nomination 
Report  
 
Draft FWP 
 

 
 
 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Environment  
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing  
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  
Officers 
Corporate Director – Communities  
Head of Operations – Community 
Services  
Group Manger – Economy, Natural 
Resources and Sustainability  
 
External 
  

 
 
 

Tuesday 25 July 2023 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Update on Communities 
Directorate Position and 
Challenges 

 
Extraordinary meeting 
 
Reviewing the challenges faced by 
the Communities Directorate. 

Cabinet Members 
Leader  
Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet 
Member of Social Services and Health  
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Resources and Legal 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Environment 
Cabinet Member for Education 
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  
 
Officers  
Chief Executive 
Chief Officer Finance, Performance and 
Change  
Corporate Director, Communities 
 
 
 
 
External - NA 

Page 57



APPENDIX A 

  

 
 
 
 

Monday 25 September 2023 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
 
Homelessness Strategy  
 

 

 

 

 
Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration   
 
Officers 
Chief Officer Finance, Performance and 
Change 
Head of Performance and Partnerships  
Strategic Housing Commissioning 
Manager 
 
External 
Head of Policy and Communications, 
Crisis Cymru 
 

 
 

Monday 27 November at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Future Waste Services 

Work Stream   

 Cabinet Members 
 
 
Officers 
 
External 
 

 
 
 

Monday 22 January 2024 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Draft Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2024-
25 to 2027-28 and Budget 
Proposals 
 

 
 

Cabinet Members 
Leader  
Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet 
Member of Social Services and Health  
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Resources and Legal 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Environment 
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration  

Page 58



APPENDIX A 

 
Officers 
Chief Executive  
Chief Officer Finance, Performance and 
Change  
Corporate Director Communities  
 
External 
 

 
 

Monday 26 February 2024 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
 
Levelling Up Fund – 
Porthcawl Pavilion  

 Cabinet Members 
 
Officers 
 
External 
 

 
 

Monday 22 April 2024 at 4.00pm 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Bridgend 2030 Net Zero 
Carbon Strategy  
 
or 
 
Strategic Transport Plan    

 

• To include information on 

-  Council Electric Vehicles  

- Air Quality Action Plan - 

Flood Mitigation 

Cabinet Members 
 
Officers 
 
External 
 

 
 
Potential Items  

 

• Housing  

- Affordable  

- Accessible  

- Social  

- Energy efficiency housing  

- Registered Social Landlords  
 

 

• Emerging Valleys Regeneration Strategy  

 

• Local Biodiversity Action Plan (could this be incorporated with the Bridgend 

2030 Net Zero Carbon Strategy) 

 

• Porthcawl Regeneration Update  

  

Page 59



APPENDIX A 

• Transforming Towns 

- Masterplans (Bridgend Town Centre – other masterplans)  

-  Tourism (attracting tourism including capacity for mobile accommodation) 

- Transport Plan Porthcawl  

- Maesteg Town Centre  

 

• Play areas / opportunities  

 

• Update on Heat Network  

 

Members briefing session 
 

• Infrastructure Delivery that has an area specifically on the deterioration of the 

road surfaces and potholes – Looking to schedule in the Autumn.  

 

• Corporate Joint Committees Regional Responsibilities 

 

• Communities Directorate Target Operating Model (TOM)  

 

 
Information reports to be provided  
 

• Asset Management Audit Wales inspection report – Possibly November  

 

• Electric charging points, where this is currently within the three phases and 

what happens after phase three is completed. 

 

• Information and update on where the Directorate are with Asset and 

Community Asset Transfer (CAT) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 2023-2024 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
19 June 
2023 

 
Update on 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund  

 
  
While the Committee acknowledged that starting a 
scheme or project before written confirmation of 
any Government Grant Funding carried some risk, 
Members reflected on whether the process 
undertaken by Cabinet and Officers had taken into 
consideration the risk of the UK Government not 
permitting the rolling of year 1 funding into year 2. 
Members therefore recommended that Cabinet 
consider whether, on balance, starting the process 
of these projects before funding was received was 
a justified risk moving forward and also provide 
reassurance as to how they could ensure it will be 
considered in future decisions, as the Authority 
would not want to receive any less than the 8.3% 
announced by the United Kingdom (UK) 
Government.  

 

 
Cabinet Members 
/ Corporate 
Director of 
Communities 

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 19 
September 2023. 

 
19 June 
2023 

 
Update on 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund  

 
  
The Committee furthermore recommend that a 
way of providing short term interim funding 
(including potentially reserves) for projects that 
have a high degree of certainty of Grant Funding 
be explored and consideration be given to 

Chief Officer - 
Finance, 
Performance & 
Change / 
Corporate 
Director of 
Communities  

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 19 
September 2023. 

P
age 61



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

mechanisms for managing risk and allowing 
projects to commence where Grant Funding had 
been agreed in principle, but not yet formalised.  

 

 
19 June 
2023 

 
Update on 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund  

 
That Members be informed of the outcome, as 
soon as possible, of whether or not the request 
made by a number of Authorities to roll over year 1 
funding into year 2 had been granted.  

 

Corporate 
Director of 
Communities 

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 19 
September 2023. 

 
19 June 
2023 

 
Update on 
Shared 
Prosperity 
Fund  

 
  
Information that the Director of Communities 
offered regarding engagement with community 
groups to establish the level of demand for 
Bridgend Local Investment Grant Funding and 
assistance required. This was in response to 
Members’ concerns regarding responsibilities and 
reliance on volunteers and organisations to deliver 
the projects and Officers’ explanations that part of 
the UKSPF was to build resilience and economic 
development, targeting communities that may not 
normally have access to that type of funding.  

 

Corporate 
Director of 
Communities 

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 19 
September 2023. 

P
age 62



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
25 July 
2023  

 
Update on 
Communities 
Directorate 
Position and 
Challenges  

 
 That the Update on Communities Directorate 
Position and Challenges report be made 
available to all Committee Members.  
 

 
Scrutiny  

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 19 
September 2023. 

 
25 July 
2023  

 
Update on 
Communities 
Directorate 
Position and 
Challenges  

 
The Committee welcomed the proposal of a plan 
over the next five years to develop a new Target 
Operating Model (TOM) as explained by the 
Corporate Director of Communities, of what the 
Communities Directorate can deliver in 
alignment with their resources and budget. 
Looking at all the services they deliver, statutory 
responsibilities and the communities’ 
expectations. The Committee recommended 
that at the opportune time when the Target 
Operating Model (TOM) draft becomes available 
it is added to the Forward Work Programme for 
review by the Committee.  
 

 
Corporate 
Director for 
Communities / 
Scrutiny  

 
ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 19 
September 2023. 

 
25 July 
2023  

 
Update on 
Communities 
Directorate 
Position and 
Challenges  

 
That the Town and Community Council Forum 
consider the current model of partnership 
working between the Local Authority and the 
local Town and Community Councils and 
explore options for better communication, more 
collaborative working and whether the authority 
can assist Town and Community Councils take 

 
Corporate 
Director for 
Communities / 
Democratic 
Services 
Manager  

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 19 
September 2023. 

P
age 63



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

on leadership of certain service provisions. The 
Members requested that the outcome of this 
discussion be provided back to Committee as an 
information report.  
 

 
25 July 
2023  

 
Update on 
Communities 
Directorate 
Position and 
Challenges  

 
The Committee discussed the Communities 
Directorate operating with a £31m budget 
allocation in the financial year 2023/2024 and it 
is representing 9% of the authority’s budget. 
They considered whether any benchmarking 
had been done in terms of budget per head of 
population in the authority for Communities 
versus those of other authorities in South Wales 
of a similar size. The Chief Executive advised a 
piece of work had been commissioned through 
the Welsh Local Government Association 
(WLGA) which they intend to share in the next 
Budget Research and Evaluation Panel (BREP).  
 

 
Corporate 
Director for 
Communities  

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 19 
September 2023. 

 

P
age 64


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Strategaeth y Rhaglen Cymorth Tai (Strategaeth Digartrefedd) 2022-2026
	4a. Appendix 1 - Housing Support Programme Strategy 2022-2026 FINAL
	4b. Appendix 2 - HSP Strategy Action Plan FINAL

	6 Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith
	6a. Appendix A - FWP - SOSC 3
	6b. Appendix B - Action Sheet SOSC 3 - 2023-24


